ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 13, 2014
8:19 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Representative Charisse MIllett
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 284
"An Act relating to an interstate conpact on a bal anced federa
budget . "

- MOVED HB 284 OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 199
"An Act relating to Departnment of Public Safety regulations
allowing village public safety officers to carry firearns."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 273

"An Act extending the termnation date of the Council on
Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault; and providing for an
effective date.”

- BILL HEARI NG RESCHEDULED TO 2/ 18/ 14
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 284

SHORT TI TLE: COVPACT FOR A BALANCED BUDGET
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLER

01/ 29/ 14 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 13, 2014



01/ 29/ 14 (H) STA, JUD
02/ 13/ 14 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 199
SHORT TITLE: VPSO FI REARVS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) EDGVON

04/ 04/ 13 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

04/ 04/ 13 (H CRA, STA

01/ 28/ 14 (H CRA AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124

01/ 28/ 14 (H Heard & Held

01/ 28/ 14 (H M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 04/ 14 (H CRA AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124

02/ 04/ 14 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 04/ 14 (H M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 05/ 14 (H) CRA RPT 5DP 1NR

02/ 05/ 14 (H) DP: REINBOLD, FOSTER, HERRON, LEDOUX,
NAGEAK

02/ 05/ 14 (H) NR:  OLSON

02/ 11/ 14 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 11/ 14 (H Heard & Held

02/ 11/ 14 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 13/ 14 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

NI CK DRANI AS, Director

Constitutional Policy

CGol dwater Institute

Phoeni x, Arizona

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a Power Poi nt presentation and answered
guestions during the hearing on HB 284.

DON BRAND
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 284.

REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGVON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, presented HB 199.

CARLA AKELKOK, Manager

VPSO Program

Bristol Bay Native Association (BBNA)

Di|'l'i ngham Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 199.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 13, 2014



JODY POITS, Coordi nat or

Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSOs)

Tanana Chi efs Conference (TCO;

Ser geant VPSO

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 199, encouraged a
nore extensive screening of VPSOs in determning whether to arm
t hem

ALBERT JUDSON
Sitka, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 199.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:19:15 AM

VICE CHAIR WES KELLER called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:19 a.m Represent ati ves
| saacson, Gattis, Hughes, MIllett, Kreiss-Tonkins, and Keller
were present at the call to order. Representative Lynn arrived
as the neeting was in progress.

HB 284- COVPACT FOR A BALANCED BUDGET

8:19:45 AM

VICE CHAIR KELLER announced the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 284, "An Act relating to an interstate conpact on
a bal anced federal budget."

8:20:16 AM

VICE CHAIR KELLER, as sponsor, introduced HB 284, which calls
for a bal anced budget anmendnment via a process under Article V of

the Constitution of the United States. A bal anced budget
anendnent is achieved through the Conpact for America (CFA
pr ocess. He encouraged legislators to support the proposed
| egi sl ation. He reviewed the anendnent process under the

Constitution and stated that Article V is a nonunent to two
t hi ngs: a sovereignty of "W the People” and a sovereignty of
t he states. He said the Constitution has been anmended only 27
times by a process through Congress; but CFA focuses on using
ratification of the Constitution through a states' process.

8:23:58 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 13, 2014



The commttee took a brief at-ease at 8:24 a.m
8:24: 14 AM
VICE CHAIR KELLER noted that Representative Lynn had joined the

comittee. He then continued with his presentation. He tal ked
about the frustration of reading about the increasing national

debt - nunbers reported in the trillions of dollars. He said
future generations are being nortgaged, and he opined that this
is immoral. He quoted words witten by Thomas Jefferson in

1798, 11 vyears after the witing of the Constitution, as
foll ows:

| wish it were possible to obtain a single anmendnent
to our Constitution. | would be willing to depend on
that alone for the reduction of the adm nistration of
our governnment to the genuine principals of this
constitution. I mean an additional Article taking
fromthe governnent the power of borrow ng.

VICE CHAIR KELLER comented at the nunber of years that have
passed since then as "we're ... realizing that Article V nay be
the answer for us to bring this back in line."

8:27:39 AM

VICE CHAIR KELLER started a slide presentation and drew
attention to the first slide, which shows that there are two
triggers under Article V: a two-thirds trigger and a three-
fourths trigger. Two-thirds of the states have to agree to a
convention to anend the Constitution. He said there are several
groups pursuing this process, including: The M. Vernon
Assenbly; the Convention of States (COS), led by Representative
Tammie WIson; the Reagan Project, led by Fritz Pettyjohn and
Robin Tayl or; and bbadusa. org. He explained that the three-
fourths trigger nmeans that three-fourths of the states have to
ratify the anmendnent.

VICE CHAIR KELLER explained that conpactforanerica.org 1is
coordinated by the CGoldwater Institute in several states, and
that will avoid the need for an amendnent convention with two-
thirds of the state showing up in person. He said, "They've
built a structure in this bill that is before you that bypasses
that." He said it could take ten years to reach the second
trigger of three-quarters; however, under HB 284 "this could be
done in one year." He suggested that today's hearing is about

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 13, 2014



the process, and the House Judiciary Standing Committee wll
fully vet the bill. He recomended a sectional analysis be
revi ewed.

8:31: 06 AM
VI CE CHAI R KELLER handed the gavel over to Chair Lynn.
8:31:12 AM

NI CK  DRANI AS, Director, Consti tuti onal Pol i cy, ol dwat er
Institute, offered a brief personal history, including that he
has been an attorney at law for 16 years, 8 years of which has
been focused on constitutional |[|aw He said the conpact
approach to amending the Constitution was devel oped in the past
two years, with the assistance of Senior Judge Harold DeMss of
the US Fifth Grcuit Court of Appeals.

MR. DRANIAS noted that in the commttee packet is witten
testinony by the follow ng individuals: Ilya Shapiro, |ead
constitutional scholar of the Cato Institute, vouching for the
constitutionality of HB 284; Dr. Byron Schlomach, a Ph.D.

econoni st at the Goldwater Institute, vouching for [the proposed
| egislation's] economc, sound policy; Dr. Sven R Larson, a
Ph.D. econom st of the Liberty Institute in Womng, vouching
for the sound fiscal policy of HB 284; Dr. Kevin R C CGutznman,

an historian, vouching that "this" 1is consistent wth the
Constitution and Article V;, and Harold "Chip" DeMss, IlIl, CEO
of Conpact for America, introducing his father's analysis of the
conflict portion of Article V, which follows as being fully
constitutional and consistent with the intent of the [Founding

Fat her s] . M. Dranias said also included in the comittee
packet are a couple of one-page docunents: a sectional
analysis, [included in heading is "HB 284 - Conpact for a

Bal anced Budget"], and a brief analysis of how the conpact
works, [entitled, "Conpact for Anerica's 'Article V 2.0 Turn-
Key Approach is Qur Best Shot"].

8:33:40 AM

CHAIR LYNN shared that he met Barry Goldwater one tinme, and the
man gave hima set of pilot w ngs.

MR. DRANIAS related that Barry CGoldwater, Jr., sits on the board
of the Goldwater Institute. He opined that the |ate Senator
Barry GColdwater was an unusual politician, because he found
principle conpromses with both the center right and center

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 13, 2014



left. He said HB 284 is neant to be nonpartisan, bipartisan,
and "fix the debt." He said there is a three-year tineline for
"getting this done."

8:34:50 AM

MR. DRANIAS directed attention to a PowerPoint presentation, to
a graph showng the U S. national debt [1900-2020]. He said it

is an unsustainable debt "headed to infinity and beyond." He
opined that it is absurd to trust a bankrupt government wth
unil ateral control over setting credit limt wthout limt. He
said some people mght say that this nomnal figure does not
show the full context, and - if adjusted for inflation or |ooked
at in terns of percentage of the gross donestic product (CGDP) -
the problem would go away. M. Dranias indicated that is not

t he case. He continued as foll ows:

If you ook at the gross federal debt as a percentage

of the gross donestic product - everything we produce
in a year - we're at over 107 percent of gross
donmestic product today. Last time we were in this
pl ace was during the height of Wrld VWar 11, when we
had a true tyrant in the world that could have taken
Western CGvilization down .... W are not in that

sanme position, yet we are borrowing at the sane |evel.
Not only that, but unlike in the 1950s, when we grew
our way out of that debt, we wll not be the only
econony standing, and we will not have a nortgaged and
"un-nortgaged" future, because the debt is actually
just the tip of the iceberg of what we have nortgaged
on future generations.

There are estimates saying unfunded entitlenent
prograns are between 100-220 trillion dollars in the
red. So, unlike in the 1950s, not only are we not the
only econony standing; not only is it unlikely we can
grow our way out of the nagnitude of this kind of debt
al one, but we've nortgaged the future in a way that is
sinply cal am t ous.

Five or six years ago, when G eece was in this sane
position as a percentage of CDP, people panicked;
they're still panicking. W should be a lot nore
concerned, because it is not getting better.

Now, you may have heard that |ast year's deficit was
$1.1 trillion; this year it's a nere $660 billion

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 13, 2014



dol | ars. Any sort of debt on this magnhitude is

unsustainable; it is absurd; it is ridiculous. Look
at the tiny little closing of the deficit, but |ook at
the drop in the overall debt: It continues. W' re
now nearly at $18 trillion. Just yesterday the | atest
maneuver in Washington, [D.C.], was to conpletely
suspend the federal debt |imt - suspend it, mnd you

This is not just lifting the debt limt. Until md-
March, there will be no debt limt yet again, just
like we had no debt limt between Cctober and February

8th in the federal governnent.

Washi ngton, [D.C.], is not learning fromits behavior;
it is not |ooking out around the world and seeing that
this is them that devastate the econom es in Europe
and in Argentina and in mny other Third-Wrld

countries.

Now, maybe ... the folks in the powers that be in
Washington, [D.C ], think we're just going to default;
maybe that's the endgane. Well that can't be the

endgane if we're responsible and if we care about
future generations, because Argentina has found out
that it's not a successful policy choice. Just a
couple years ago, their Ar Force One was nearly
seized by a hedge fund creditor because of a default
on a debt nearly 13 years ago. Now, they've litigated
over that for a couple years, and eventually had the
Air Force One released to them but that's just one
i nstance of what has happened in Argentina. You may
be aware of a federal law suit that's still pending in
New York, where hedge funds are trying to get access
to sone of the pension assets that were nmaintained in
the jurisdiction of the United States because of the
default on their debt.

The other thing people don't realize about Argentina,
when they defaulted, is they scotched a |lot of trade
agreenents. They can't do business anywhere near |ike
they used to do business with the world; and in a
world of interconnected economes that is absolutely

devast ati ng. And ... three years after the debt,
after Argentina could no |onger borrow abroad, what
did it do? It nationalized everyone's 401Ks. It took

all of the good assets that people had saved up over
the course of their working lives and replaced them

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 13, 2014



with worthless governnent bonds, just so they had a
captured borrow ng base.

That is our future if we do not stop the bleeding now.
We have a three-year time horizon, because we do not
have three or five or ten nore years to fix this
pr obl em W have to stop it now, otherwise we are
headed the sanme road as Argentina. And if you think
Argentina is all that different, keep in mnd in the
1940s they were wealthier than we were on a per capita
basi s.

8:39:47 AM

MR. DRANI AS stated that no matter who is in charge, Wshington,
D.C., never fixes the problem He said the reason is sinple:

"If you give the debtor control over his own credit limt, you
should not expect that the debtor will not do anything other
than what we saw in those initial charts.” He said the

concentration of unlimted power to borrow in one hand is what
i s being abused, and he asked how it could be any other way. He
said further this is a structural problem of denbcracy and the
reason why 49 states |imt debt in their own constitutions,
statutes, or case law. He continued as follows:

Good people on the left and the right, over 100 years
ago, cane together under a consensus, recognizing that
unlimted debt in the hands of an elected class, is
not ... containable, and here's why: You can get
elected giving current constituents the benefits of
your spending while shifting the costs to nonvoting
future generations when you' re safely out of office.
There is no inherent check in the denocratic process
that can adequately protect those nonvoting future
generations from being saddled with the burden of our
policy choices today. So, whether you look at this
from the perspective of someone on the center right,
and you worry about the growth of governnment, or you
ook at this from the perspective of soneone on the
center left and you just think in terns of denocracy
and having the will of the people truly be expressed
in the instrunentalities and organs of governnent, we
have a silent, sinple mpjority that is sinply being
denied its future, and that is our kids and their
ki ds. Wthout a fundanental law that limts the use
of debt, this will continue, and it wll destroy our

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 13, 2014



future. That's why 39 states have converged on this
sol uti on.

8:41:37 AM

MR. DRANI AS enphasi zed the need for a bal anced budget anmendnent
for the federal government that strikes at the root of the
problem and renoves the power away from the debtor to set
his/her own credit limt. He said "we" need to |learn from what
states have done at the state and municipal |levels and apply it
to the federal governnent. He proceeded to explain how to do
t hat . He warned against defining a bal anced budget, which he
indicated is just a projection. He explained that doing so is
"inviting gam ng." He opined that the only way to achieve a
bal anced budget is to limt spending the nobney avail able. He
said debt has a purpose: "to provide a line of credit to handle
a volatility in tax receipts so that you can make good on your
spending comitnments.” He said a bal anced budget anendnment is
not an anti-debt neasure; it is a "responsible use of debt
measure." He said it wuld end Congress' nontransparent
approach of waiting until the last mnute to spring upon the
country a new $500-$600-billion conmtnment to borrow.

MR. DRANIAS said an inflexible line of credit is not an option
because there could be need for funds in the event of a war or
natural disaster, but Congress should not control a flexible
line of credit. The bal anced budget anendnent would propose
that if there is a legitimate reason to borrow beyond the fixed
initial revolving line of credit, [Congress] would have to make
a proposal to the state legislatures, and a majority of those
states, in a referendum would have to approve the increase. He
said [state] legislatures are closer to the people, who for the
past 40 years in sustained polling have said they want a limt
on debt. He stated that this would give a bigger voice to the
peopl e, who he opined are nore concerned about their children
t han those el ected to Congress.

8:44:54 AM

CHAI R LYNN asked if there would be tine to get a referendum from
the states in response to an energency.

MR. DRANI AS answered that Congress could send out a "debt crisis
borrow ng authorization nmeasure"” to receive an additional anount
of noney when certain criteria are net. He reiterated that this
is a three-year process, and said hopefully Congress would plan
for such a crisis; however, he said the reality is that bond

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 13, 2014



markets currently take about a nonth to give Congress credit
He said the question is whether states could nobilize thensel ves
to address an energency situation 10 tines worse than [the
terrorist attacks of Septenber 11, 2001]. He said he thinks
they can. He added, "If it were a problemto nobilize within 30
days, | doubt the bond markets would be functioning well enough
to handl e the problem anyhow. "™ Therefore, he opined that this
[ proposal] provides adequate flexibility for handling a war
si tuation.

MR. DRANI AS said Congress has drafted about 20 bal anced budget
anendnents, but the problem with those is that they have a
bl anket exception for crises defined by Congress. He indicated
that the exception has been made since being involved in war
since 2001. He said, "Under all the bal anced budget anendnent
proposal s Congress has ever proposed, there would be no limt on
debt at all, as long as that original (indisc.) declaration
remai ned outstanding.” He said he is confident that states |ike
Al aska w Il react responsibly when the proposed |egislation gets
near to conpletion; contingency plans wll be in place, and
legislators will travel to Washington, D.C., to keep an eye on
[ Congress] . He said there is trenendous interest from a w de
variety of states, and action being taken in Georgia, Arkansas,
Ari zona, Louisiana, and Onio. He stated, "W want to keep it
small this session so that the founding nenber states have
control over the initial product."

8:48: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked what percentage of states is
required to "approve an expansion."”

MR. DRANI AS answered a sinple majority.
8:49:16 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if the |anguage and punctuation put forth by
all participating states nust match exactly.

MR. DRANIAS said although there are reasons to maintain the
original |anguage, anendnents can be nade. He said the
Gol dwater Institute would request that any state wi shing to nake
an amendnment first bring it to the attention of the institute

He further recommended that the Alaska State Legislature allow
himto introduce its nenbers to the sponsor and co-sponsors from
ot her states. He remarked that 200 years ago, this process
woul d have been inpossible, but because of nodern technol ogy,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 13, 2014



any changes can be coordinated successfully. He stated that
once the conpact is formed, it nust be adopted identically by
all other states that join it, unless all the states unani nously

agree to any changes. He said once two states have joined in
the conpact, they form a commssion, which has the job of
handl i ng | ogi stics. He said the comm ssion would be a natural
point of |everage to coordinating further changes throughout the
process. He relayed that there are nore than 200 conpacts
currently in existence, and Alaska is probably a nenber of at
| east twenty of those. He said, "Wthout a compact, you just

have a stack of paper, and that stack of paper doesn't have a
voice, and it doesn't have an institution to coordi nate anythi ng
that mght ... arise fromit."

8:52:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said she believes that the federal debt is
a concern that resonates with many. She asked if adjustnents to

state conpacts nust be made within state |egislatures. She
asked M. Dranias to address the issue of not binding future
| egi sl at ures. She offered her wunderstanding that there is a

clock that starts ticking on a seven-year process, and she asked
M. Dranias to talk about that in relation to his aforenentioned
goal of three years.

MR. DRANI AS offered his understanding that the commttee packet
should include a copy of answers to frequently asked questions
(FAQ) [entitled "Using a Conpact for Article V Amendnents:
Experts Answer FAQ from the Goldwater Institute"]. Regar di ng
entrenchnment, he said wunder the contracts clause of the
Constitution of the United States, states are barred from
inmpairing contracts that they form or that others form within
their states. As a result, when a legislature creates a
contract, such as a conpact, it binds that state - even to
future |legislative bodies. Exi sting conpacts typically are
ent r enched. For exanple, he related that the Colorado R ver
Conpact, adopted in 1926, has a termnation clause that
prohi bits anyone from extraction wthout the conpact, w thout
t he unani nous consent of all nenbers of that conpact. He said
there is a constitutional limt on the degree of entrenchnment
that will be tolerated; it will not allow a state to give away
too nmuch of its sovereign power. For that reason, conpacts are
witten with a sunset clause to becone null and void seven years
after being first enacted by the first state. He said that is a
nunber borrowed from the typical sunset provisions of a
ratification referral from Congress. He said that in addition
to the sunset, the Conpact for a Bal anced Budget only entrenches

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 13, 2014



once 38 states join it; therefore, the Goldwater Institute does
not believe there is any possibility the conpact would "violate
the outer edge or boundaries of the exception from the rule
agai nst entrenchnent."”

8: 55: 34 AM

MR. DRANIAS talked about the institute's coordination wth
Al aska, Georgia, Arizona, and Arkansas through the process of e-
mai | i ng. He said there are "no egos in this"; [those involved]
are looking at this as a way of saving future generations. He
said it only takes two states with identical conpacts to form a
conmi ssion, which would reach out to recruit other states. In
response to a followup question, he confirnmed that if other
states come on board later, but they change the |anguage, they
would have to bring that change to the initial two states
i nvol ved. He said that is why the Goldwater Institute wants to
di scourage unnecessary "tweaks." He said when there is a
structure in place, with a conmm ssion that organizes |ogistics,
it is "fairly typical that people can work out these things."
He stated the critical point about a conpact is that it creates
a live institution, which "maintains the policy push, even when
the w nds of popular opinion nay not be there for you." M.
Dranias talked about a balanced budget anendnent that was
started during the Reagan Administration in 1976, and al nost 40
years later it is nowhere near done, because interest in the

i ssue has waxed and waned. Conversely, he opined, [HB 284],
with its seven-year sunset, "creates an institutional conm tnent
to persist and get the job done.™ He said the problem is

infinitely bigger than what was faced in the '70s and ' 80s.
8:59: 37 AM

MR. DRANIAS, in response to the chair, offered an overview of
where the aforementioned states are in the process of noving
their conpacts forward. He said the benefit of being the first
state to pass a conpact is getting to select the chair of the
convention that is organized in the conpact. He added, "I
personal ly think that having Al aska be the first state would be
really good from an independence partiality point of view

| think Alaska has a unique position to have a nore abstract, a
nore principled approach to this."

9:01:41 AM

CHAIR LYNN queried about whether there were testifiers on the
proposed | egi sl ati on.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 13, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered his understanding that there was
one, and he indicated that [as chair of the House Judiciary
Standi ng Conmttee], he would hear any other testifiers.

9:02: 26 AM

MR. DRANIAS returned to his presentation. He said built into
the conpact is the "no nore gane of chicken provision," which he
indicated relates to federal shutdown and waiting until the |ast
mnute to raise the debt limt. He explained that the proposed
conpact would require the President to start identifying
i mpoundnents at 98 percent of the debt I|imts, which - at
current burn rates - neans about six nonths before reaching the
debt limt. This timng would give Congress an opportunity to
override the proposed inpoundnents. He said, "Qbviously the
di scussion would continue beyond the inpoundnent phase, because
we're borrowing 45 cents of every dollar, so if you're going to
i mpound, that's going to be a lot of blood-letting in the
budget . " He said the six nonths would give tine to make the
case for any needed debt, revenue, or spending cuts, either
internally through Congress or externally through the states.
M. Dranias said another change would be to nodify the tax

limt, because going too far in limting the possibility of
raising taxes to close the deficit may result in the |oss of
"sone of our friends on the center-left.” He expl ai ned those

peopl e are needed, because nothing can be done wthout the
cooperation of 38 states.

MR. DRANI AS enphasi zed the relation between debt and taxes: if
debt is being paid back, it is comng out of taxes. He said the
proposed conpact neither sacrifices the current generation to
future generations nor future generations to the current
generation, because it would require tw-thirds of each house to
agree to any new tax or increase in existing tax. He naned
three exceptions that could be done by a sinple majority vote:
approving a replacenment of income tax with an end user sales

t ax, not a value-added tax (VAT); closing all credits,
deductions, and exenptions in existing taxes; and raising
tariffs or fees. This would channel the drive to any new

revenue to places where special interests pushbacks would be the
strongest and where a legitimte need for nore revenue probably
would be the only thing that could overcone that special
i nterest pushback. He opined that this would be a significant
l[imt on taxes, while allowing for "truly necessary revenues."
He said polling data shows that "even Denocrats prefer spending

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 13, 2014



cuts first over tax increases"; it 1is plausible that the
proposed conpact could get its way through at |east 38 states.

9:06: 28 AM

MR. DRANIAS opined that it is wunlikely that Congress would
propose anything |like the Conpact for a Bal anced Budget, which
is why the Founding Fathers included the state process of
anending the Constitution in Article V. He stated that Patrick
Henry and George Mason, both patriots, hated the Constitution

M. Henry argued in 1788 that the state origination of
anmendnents was a fraud and inpossible for the 13 states to
navi gat e. M. Dranias said that argument has even nore
resonance today. He clarified his intent was not to disparage
the other Article V novenents in existence, which he said he
advocated for years; however, he enphasized the inportance of
understandi ng the challenge of what not using a conpact poses

He continued as foll ows:

You need at |east 100 legislative acts to get it done
from beginning to end. Now, mnd you, there has never
been a coordinated |egislative process of any kind -,
whether you look to the Uniform Conmercial Code or

anything else - that has been able to do this. Now,
imagine this for a constitutional amendnent. Now, you
say 100, well where does that come fron? Wll, you
gotta have ... 34 states file passed resolutions for
an application to Congress, and [in] places Iike
Al aska, you can't avoid gubernatorial presentnent.
Congress has to call. Now, legally, constitutionally,
Congress i s supposed to have a nmandatory obligation to
call a convention if that happens, but, you know,

Congress never violates the Constitution, right? I
mean, they always do what they're supposed to do. No
they don't. So, the problem is you still need the
political will in Congress to pass a resolution of
sinple mpjorities; that's the practical reality.

Then the states have to presumably send sonebody to

the conventi on. That nmeans at |east sone kind of
guorunm at least 26 states gotta pass |aw sending
peopl e. Then assum ng the convention does anything,

you know, you can't really count [on] the convention
doing anything, but it could deadlock really easily.
But assumng that the convention does sonething that
it has to propose an anendnent to Congress, and
Congress has to refer it back out; again, Congress is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 13, 2014



supposed to do this without a matter of choice - they
must do this - but again, reality says that they m ght
not. And so, you need to have political will to pass
a resolution of sinple majorities to nmke sure it
happens. Then you gotta have 38 states ratify what is
generated from Congress. Now, mnd you, it's not just
38 state legislative acts; it's possible Congress wll
choose to have instate conventions be the node of
ratification. Not every state has laid out in their
own statute books yet how to do that in-state
convention, so you could have another round of
legislation on top of the convention to try to get
t hi s done.

So, this is a difficult process. And it's not that we
shouldn't try it, but let's recognize how difficult

this is wthout a conpact. This is a "Hail Mary
Pass," not just once; it's once, twice, three tines,
four tines. Now, I'm all for Hail Mry passes if

that's all we've got, but it's not all we've got. The
conpact approach mekes this process doable; it nmakes
it sinpler; it nmakes it nore easy. Now, mnd you

as we tal ked about tweaks, it can't really be used for
political ideas that are divisive; it can't really be
used for overly conplex issues; it can't really be
used where you don't really have a clear policy
solution in mnd yet. It's really only sonething that
can work for a well-defined, super majority product
that plausibly, in the near future, can command a
m nimal of tweaks and 38-state support. You shoul d
know that our partner organization spent $50,000 on a
poll testing the various conponents of the BBA in our
conpact . C. Every conmponent, even the state
ref erendum conponent, polls at 60 percent plus.

9:10: 49 AM

MR. DRANI AS said conpacts are not the exclusive way to go; they
can only practically be used for things that do that kind of

pol |'i ng. O her things that require drafting, consensus
buil ding, those are all going to have to be done through the
traditional route; there's no other choice. M. Dranias next
descri bed the process of the conmpact, which he said is a single
pi ece of overarching |egislation. He stated, "In the conpact,
you have the proposed anendnent, Article Il in your bill."
There is a commssion that organizes |ogistics. The conpact
al so includes an application required by Article V. It uses a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 13, 2014



conditional enactnent, which only sends out the application to

Congress once 38 states join the conpact. He continued as
fol |l ows:
As soon as that application goes |live, in the
congressional resolution, in Title I, a pre-rated cal

for the convention, in accordance with the conpact, is
triggered. Wen that call goes live in the conpact it
triggers delegate appointnments specified in the

conpact; it instructs those delegates to vote and to
place rules requiring an up or down vote on the
anendnent it contenplates. That goes live. It builds
in a scope limtation that nullifies anything that

m ght come out of the convention other than the BBA
that is contenplated, satisfying the nmany reasonable
peopl e who worry about runaway conventions. Assumi ng
a convention actually, in this limted fashion, votes
up rather than down the anmendnent that's contenpl ated,
t hat i mredi ately triggers, using a conditional
enact nment in the congressional resol ution, t he
ratification referral that's in Section 2. As soon as
that goes live, based on the conditional enactnent, it
triggers a pretty loaded ratification in the conpact
that was already there from the begi nning. That goes
live - boom You can get done in a grand total of 38
enactnents in the states - assuming mninal tweaks or
none, hopefully - and one enactnent in Congress,
everything that would otherwise take over 100
enact nents usi ng the non-conpact approach.

That nmakes this plausible, but nore inportantly, it
makes it "canpaignable,” because you can know all the
political players that are involved in this process as
you're plotting how to get from point A to point B.
You can't know that in the regular Article V approach
wi thout a conpact. And that's one of the greatest
chal | enges about the non-conpact approach to Article V
is [that] you have so nmany different |I|egislative
sessions you have to navigate, you just cannot
canpaign it out based on known political quantities at
al | . So, again, | support the other version of
Article V ..., but | think it's inportant to enphasize
that not only is it a series of Hail Mary passes, but
in a very real sense, it's a blindfolded Hail Mary
pass over and over again. So, the conpact, for once,
finally resolves all uncertainty in the process;
everything's determned up front and everyone Kknows

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 13, 2014



what they're getting into. And this resolves a |ot of
concerns that sonme folks have had on the left and the
right about the Article V convention process.

MR. DRANIAS said a conpact is like a ballot neasure, in that

"you know what you're going to get." Like a ballot neasure, a
conpact may fail. The Conpact for a Bal anced Budget has sixteen
safeguards built in to satisfy those concerned about a possible
runaway convention. He credited Andy Schlafly for bringing

forward the demands that resulted in the safeguards.
9:14: 49 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked M. Dranias to state for the record the
guarantees there woul d not be a runaway conventi on.

MR. DRANIAS answered that wunder Article VIII, in HB 284,
anyt hing that mght happen at the convention other than what is
specifically mapped out would be nullified. Further, it would

bind all the nenber states to not ratify anything that m ght
come out of the convention other than the contenplated BBA
Because a conpact is regarded as a binding contract that has
entrenchnent capabilities, it wll "lock down the nenber
states.” He described the protection as being so good that the
possibility of tyranny is greater than that of having a runaway
conventi on.

9:16:49 AM

VR. DRANI AS stated, "Right now, Congress is a standing
constitutional convention." Under current case law, it takes
only two-thirds of a quorum for Congress to propose anendnents
on any subject. Furt her, nobody has any say-so over what rules
Congress m ght set. He asked, "The reality is if we are not
worried about Congress, despite all the destruction and
calamity that they're meting upon us and our Kkids, [then] why
are we worried about this?" He said Article V "decentralizes

power” and "fixes the problem"” He opined that the best thing
to do is to have a conpact for a BBA. He said there is a "dirty

little secret”" in Article V, which is that Congress has a
position of power to control the call and the ratification
referral. If the conpact is not wused, "you" nust go back to
Congress twi ce and hope that each tine Congress does what it is
supposed to do and does not table the bill "or otherwise try to
screw around with things." He clarified that he thinks Congress
would pass a bill that organizes the convention as a mni

Congress, where it lowers the proposed anendnent's threshold.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 13, 2014



He said Congress has introduced bills like that tw ce already:
once in the 1970s and once in the 1980s. He said the conpact
fills "all those voids" and, because it sunsets in seven years,

it mani fests real political wi || in institution versus
institution, and thereby forces Congress to make a political
choice to oppose 38 states or "go along with it." He stated

"There is no opportunity for Congress to circunvent it wthout
denyi ng the conpact."

MR. DRANIAS said the Founding Fathers prom sed that the states
woul d have the ability to get whatever anendnents they desired
using Article V. He said logistically it's been incredibly
difficult, but with a conpact it is finally plausible to fix the
nati onal debt.

9:19:58 AM

MR. DRANIAS, in response to Chair Lynn, related that before his
current position, he was at the Institute for Justice, 1In
M nnesota, for three years, and prior to that was a |itigant
attorney for eight years in Chicago.

9:21:15 AM

DON BRAND indicated that he becanme a volunteer wth the
Convention of States Project in order to do something that would
"address constraints on federal abuse, including spending.” He
stated his support of "any approach, which has as its goal to
seek amendnents that constrain federal spending”; therefore, he
stated support of HB 284 and urged the committee to nove it
f or war d. In response to the chair, he confirned that he was
testifying on his own behal f.

9:22: 05 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony.

9:22:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER observed that four out of the seven
menbers of the commttee are not also on the House Judiciary
Standing Conmittee, and he requested that those who w shed
commttee discussion on HB 284 in the House State Affairs
Standing Conmttee to say so. He explained his tendency is to
want to nove the proposed legislation out of the commttee, but
he does not want to cut anyone out of the discussion.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 13, 2014



9:22:53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES stated her preference to have nore tine to
under st and what the budget anmendnment woul d do.

9:23: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S expressed concern that if the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee holds HB 284, it nmay not pass [out of
both bodies by the end of session]; therefore, she said she
woul d vote to nove it out of conmmttee where the House Judiciary
Standing Commttee coul d address the constitutional aspect.

9:24: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKINS posited that the House Judiciary
Standing Conmittee seens |like an appropriate venue for what
appears to be a "suprenely judicial bill."

9:24: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said he echoes the sentinment of the
maj ority. He said he understands what Representative Hughes
would like to do; however, he ventured that [the House Judiciary
Standing Conmittee] would ensure that the proposed |egislation
delivered on its intent.

9:25:22 AM

CHAIR LYNN renmarked there are only two |lawers on the House
Judi ci ary Standing Conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said he was prepared to make a notion to
nmove HB 284 out of conmttee.

9:25: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said she thinks the information she wants
woul d only take a few m nutes to address.

9:26: 30 AM
CHAI R LYNN r eopened public testinony.

9:26:45 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 13, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES observed that |anguage on page 3 of HB 284
begins the explanation of the proposed BBA, and she asked M.
Dranias to offer further details.

9:27:22 AM

MR. DRANIAS stated that the proposed BBA has seven sections.
[ Section 6 of the BBA, as shown on page 4, lines 13-25, of HB
284], is the definitional section, which he said is probably the
nost inportant toward understanding the entirety of the proposed
bill. He said Section 1 [of the BBA, explained on page 3, lines
9-12 of HB 284], relates to balance and would limt expenditures
of the United States Governnment to all tax receipts and other
i ncome, excluding the proceeds from debt and the incurrence of
liability. He said the intent of this is to |imt spending to
"only taxes and things |like taxes." He stated, "Any tinme noney
is created out of thin air, that is proceeds fromthe incurrence
of aliability."

9: 30: 04 AM

MR. DRANI AS said Section 2 [of the BBA, shown on page 3, lines
13-17 of HB 284], proposes an establishment of a line of credit
at 105 percent of the outstanding debt on ratifications. The
extra five percent would give tine through additional borrow ng
to try to figure out what to do next. Section 3 [of the BBA

shown on page 3, lines 18-27 of HB 284], pertains to the
referendum process, whereby in order to increase the initial
revolving line of <credit, [Congress] would have to refer a

measure out to the states, a mgjority of which would have to
approve the nmeasure. He said the significance of this provision
is that it would deem void as an issue anything that would
involve a quid pro quo, so the possibility of states being
coerced into approving debt increases would be greatly mnimzed
because it would risk the soundness of the bond issuance.

MR. DRANIAS said Section 4 [of the BBA, shown on page 3, l|ine
28, through page 4, line 5 of HB 284], relates to the
i npoundnent requirenent, whereby roughly six nonths prior to
hitting the debt limt, the parties state what they would have
to inmpound if the debt limt is not increased, taxes are not cut
or increased, or spending is not cut or raised. Section 5 [of
the BBA, shown on page 4, lines 6-12, of HB 284], pertains to a
tax limt where there would be a general rule of a two-thirds
[vote in Congress] required for any increase or new taxes, wth
the three exceptions, using sinple najorities to either get to a
fair tax, get to a flatter tax, or to rely on tariffs and fees.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 13, 2014



He reiterated that Section 6 of the BBA is the definition
section. He stated that Section 7 [of the BBA, on page 4, |ines
26-27 of HB 284], states that as soon as the anendnent is
ratified, it is operative; Congress does not have to pass a | aw

9:32: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER announced that M. Dranias would be
available in the Speaker's Chanbers at 4:00 p.m to answer
guestions. Further, he relayed that M. Dranias had relayed his
commtnment to being a resource to Alaska. He said he would |ike
to make a notion to nove the bill out of conmttee.

9: 32: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES expressed thanks for the tine taken to
identify the factors of the BBA

9:32: 53 AM

CHAI R LYNN recl osed public testinony.

9: 32: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON noved to report HB 284 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 284 was reported out of the

House State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

HB 199- VPSO FI REARVS

[ Contai ns nmention of SB 98.]
9: 33: 33 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced the final order of business was HOUSE BILL
NO. 199, "An Act relating to Departnment of Public Safety
regul ations allowing village public safety officers to carry
firearns."

9:33:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGMON, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor, presented HB 199. In response to the chair, he
confirmed that there were two fatal incidents in which a VPSO
was killed in the line of duty. Both occurred in Bristol Bay.

The first happened October 22, 1986, when Ron Zimin lost his

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 13, 2014



life pursuing an incident of donmestic violence in the community
of South Naknek; the second incident took place March 19, 2013,
i n Manokot ak. He reported that the nunmber of assaults against
VPSOGs has been increasing. He said he has observed a change in
many rural Al aska comunities, with an increase in violence,
donestic violence, and drug related altercations. He stated it
is just a matter of time before there is another violent
confrontation that nmay be avoided as a result of the proposed
| egi sl ation. In response to the chair, he said it is not
possible to know for certain whether the aforenentioned
fatalities could have been avoided if those VPSOs had been
armed; however, he indicated that many residents of Manokotak
believed it would have nade a difference.

9:36: 29 AM

CARLA  AKELKOK, Manager, VPSO Program Bri st ol Bay Native
Association (BBNA), stated that the BBNA Board of Directors,
i ncluding President/CEO Ral ph Andersen, supports HB 199. She
said BBNA is a regional Al aska Native non-profit corporation and
tribal consortium which has operated the VPSO Program for nore
than 30 years, since its inception. She related that both VPSCs
who died in the line of duty - Ron Zimn in South Naknek in
1986, and Thomas Madole in Manokotak on March 19, 2013 - were
BBNA enpl oyees. She stated, "Both are honored and in our hearts
and nenories.”

M5. AKELKCOK said BBNA strongly supports changing state policy to
allow VPSGs to be arnmed, along with the required certified
traini ng. She said BBNA thinks the decision [whether to arm a
VPSOQ should be made as |ocal policy by the particular comunity
and non-profit enployer. She said at present BBNA's VPSO
contract with the Departnment of Public Safety (DPS) prohibits
BBNA from allowing its VPSOs to be arnmed while on duty. She
relayed that shortly after the death of VPSO Madol e, the BBNA
Board of Directors adopted Resolution 2013-07, which called on
DPS to rescind the ban on arm ng VPSGCs. Further, in Septenber
2013, the board adopted resolution 2013-14 expressing support of
HB 199.

M5. AKELKOK stated BBNA's belief that the social environment of
rural Alaska has changed in the last 30 years, and that
i ncreased use of al cohol and dangerous drugs such as
nmet hanphet am ne and heroin make the VPSO jobs nore hazardous.
She said BBNA recogni zes that a change in state policy to allow
BPSGs to be arnmed should be done through a planned process, and
appropriate training should be provided. She stated, "If

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 13, 2014



approved, BBNA has volunteered to be the pilot project wth
DPS. "

9:39:31 AM

M5. AKELKCK, in response to the chair, said BBNA does have
concerns about liability and will form a working group with DPS
to conduct further research.

9:40: 32 AM

JODY POTTS, Coordinator, Village Public Safety O ficers (VPSGs),
Tanana Chiefs Conference (TCC); Sergeant VPSO, comended the
state and bill sponsor for bringing HB 199 forward to support
VPSGs and the work they do in rural Al aska. Based on her
experience as a VPSO over the last four years, she said she has

w tnessed an increase in the |level of vi ol ence and
unpredictability of the people that VPSGs deal with on a regul ar
basis, along with an increase in assaults on officers. She

stated that the TCC Executive Board and President support armng
VPSCs and have faith in DPS's ability to properly train VPSGCs.
She said she was a recruit at the acadeny in Sitka, and she
believes the training will be sufficient.

M5. POTTS relayed the only concern is related to the screening
process. She said currently VPSOs have to pass a basic crimna
background check, after which the nonprofit organization is
allowed to interview and hire them She said state troopers and
ot her munici pal police in Al aska who are certified by the Al aska
Police Standards Council (APSC) undergo a much nore |engthy
screening process, which includes a nore in depth background
check, psychol ogical ("psych") evaluations, a polygraph test, a
physical fitness test, and nore |engthy interviews. She opi ned
that that is inportant to ensure that "comunities are getting
highly qualified individuals that are fit mentally and
physically in order to carry a firearm" She stated her belief,
based on the research she has conducted, that this factor could
protect a VPSO the hiring organization, and the state if a
l[iability case was brought claimng excessive use of force. She
said she thinks it would be a disservice to Alaskans if the
state does not require a test of nmental and physical fitness, in
addition to the crimnal background check, [before qualifying a
VPSO t o be arned].

9:44: 18 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 13, 2014



CHAIR LYNN asked Ms. Potts if she is concerned that under HB
199, a VPSO would not be required to have as much training in
carrying a firearmas a police officer.

M5. POTTS answered yes. She stated her belief that the villages
bei ng served deserve the highest training in their VPSGCs. She
further remarked upon the high-level, quality training that the
VPSO Acadeny provides. In response to a followup question, she
reenphasi zed her concern about how the courts would view a case
of excessive force brought against a VPSO who had not been
screened sufficiently to determ ne whether he/she was qualified
to carry a weapon. In response to the chair, she clarified that
TCC supports HB 199, but strongly feels that the issue of a
proper screening process needs to be addressed.

9:47: 33 AM
REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES requested that the bill sponsor explain

why the screening is not included and address the issue of
trai ni ng brought up by Ms. Potts.

9:48: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON said he has been assured by DPS that the
whol e process of screening and training, which will be under the
unbrella of the Alaska Police Standards Council, wll be
"simlar [to], if not directly on par with what a nunicipal
police officer would get." He said he cannot speak for the non-
profit organizations [that hire the VPSGCs], but he surm sed that
they would carefully screen candidates. To illustrate his

personal commtnent to this issue, he told the conmttee he is
going to the training facility in Sitka on a Saturday when there
will be active training taking place, and he invited others to
join him

9:50: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS expressed concern regarding additional
training that may be necessary to address unique situations in
rural villages where, for exanple, a VPSO nmay be related to sone
of those he/she serves. She indicated that carrying a weapon

can escalate a situation. Notw thstanding that, she opined that
[ VPSOCs] working in villages should not be without a weapon.

9:52: 09 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 13, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked the bill sponsor whether the
phrase "m ninum standards in training" is associated with the
Al aska Police Standards Council .

9:52: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON responded that following the House
Community and Regional Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting on HB
199, he asked DPS to check with the Departnment of Law on whet her
"that, in fact, was the case,” and the answer he received was
yes.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked Representative Edgnon to confirm
that he thinks "no anendnent is needed to make sure that that
intent is ... fulfilled in regulation.”

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON answered that is correct.
9:53:19 AM

ALBERT JUDSON related that he is Tlingit and (indisc.), and his
father was the first policeman in Hoonah, Al aska. He said he
becanmre a VPSO He stated support of HB 199 and SB 98, because
of the work he did, the experiences he had, and the things he
saw. He related an incident where his |life was threatened. He
mentioned the right to bear arns, and the right to self-
protection. He said he would like to see VPSCs get tenporary
permts even before getting training, because of the need to
protect thenselves and their role in protecting the general

publi c. He said they take an oath, which should be taken
seriously.
9:57:43 AM

MR. JUDSON questioned if there is a law which says if a citizen
failed to help protect a police officer who was attacked, he/she
would be in violation of the law, and if so, he suggested that
that | aw should apply to VPSGs and anyone in |aw enforcenent, no

matter where they are |ocated. He talked about the United
States having fought for the right to be free and the equal
protection of all under |aws. He asked the commttee if there

should be a state trooper acadeny separate from that for VPSGCs.
He tal ked about "many of thent being unqualified, having been

veterans, but with no formal training. He suggested having a
public safety acadeny for VPSGCs and security personnel, which
woul d "alleviate that ... weakness."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- February 13, 2014



10: 00: 33 AM

MR. JUDSON relayed that the only part of HB 199 he questions is
in regard to the phrase "mninmm standards of training". He
said, "That's where | feel that a tenporary permt should be
i ssued imrediately, if not sooner "

CHAI R LYNN t hanked M. Judson for his service as a VPSO
[ HB 199 was hel d over.]

10: 02: 26 AM

ADJ QURNMVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 10:02
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 13, 2014



